MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CLARKSVILLE, ARKANSAS,
HELD IN THE CONFERENCE ROOM OF CITY HALL ON APRIL 15, 2024, AT 6:00 P.M.

PRESENT: Mayor David Rieder, City Clerk/Treasurer Barbara Blackard, and City Attorney Deidre Luker.

ALDERMEN PRESENT: Patrick Baker, Eddie Bradley, Susan Edens, Eddie King, Robert Risinger, and Christel
Thompson.

Alderman Edens made a motion to approve the agenda which Alderman Baker seconded.
Vote aye: Baker, Bradley, Edens, King, Risinger, and Thompson.

Alderman Bradley made a motion to approve the minutes which Alderman Baker seconded.
Vote aye: Baker, Bradley, Edens, King, Risinger, and Thompson.

Allocate $50,000.00 for Shooting Range

Police Chief Jeff Ross stated they were looking at finishing the shooting range which consisted of a building for the
range. Rough estimates had been obtained for a metal building which would be a little over $35,000.00. He did not
think they would need all of the $50,000.00. They would get the pad laid and then have the building set. Alderman
King asked if this was in the budget. Chief Ross stated the range actually came out of Police Maintenance. Alderman
King asked if they would have to fence it. Chief Ross stated it was not fenced at this time; it is cordoned off by the
quarry walls or the trees. The road that goes in is about an eighth of a mile. Alderman King asked if it would have to
be fenced to keep people out. Chief Ross stated so far there had not been any issues. Even if they did put up a fence,
it would not keep anyone out in that area. If they had to, a barbed wired fence would be the most economical, and it
would not keep many people out. They currently did not have anything of value out there. They had an old car that
they had decommissioned to train out of. The building will be used to store targets and that stuff in so that they do not
have to be carried back and forth. Alderman King stated he was thinking a fence was needed to keep people from
driving up there and vandalizing stuff. Chief Ross stated they had a gate up and that was the only way you could drive
in. Mayor Rieder stated that other than coming through the stone quarry there was no other access. Mayor Rieder
stated he thought that when this came up last year it was talked about to do the building out of General Fund Reserves,
but he was not sure that was a hundred percent accurate. Clerk/Treasurer Barbara Blackard stated that she did not
remember that. Alderman King stated it was discussed that if it ran over, then they would look at it. Clerk/Treasurer
Barbara Blackard stated the balance in Police Maintenance was $413,559.00. Alderman King stated that he was
covered. Chief Ross stated that there would be $40,000.00 coming back from the school for one of the cars. Alderman
King stated to just make sure that he did not exceed the bid limit on anything. Alderman Risinger stated he would like
to see it come out of the General Fund Reserve; that in his opinion, if you were building a building, you were
manufacturing; that it was not maintenance. You would have maintenance in the future. Alderman Risinger made a
motion to approve $50,000.00 from General Fund Reserves. Alderman King asked how much was in the General
Fund. Clerk/Treasurer Barbara Blackard stated the balance in General Fund was $635,373.00. Alderman Thompson
asked what the auditor would say about approving this from Police Maintenance. Clerk/Treasurer Barbara Blackard
stated those funds could only be used for the police. Alderman Thompson asked if building the building would be a
problem. Clerk/Treasurer Barbara Blackard stated it would not. Motion died due to lack of a second. Alderman
Thompson made a motion to approve $50,000.00 from Police Maintenance Funds for the shooting range building
which Alderman King seconded.

Vote aye: Baker, Bradley, Edens, King, Risinger, and Thompson.

Ordinance Special Permit

Mayor Rieder introduced an ordinance entitled: AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A SPECIAL PERMIT REQUEST
FOR THE CITY OF CLARKSVILLE, ARKANSAS. The clerk read the ordinance. The mayor declared the ordinance
open for discussion. Hunter Whitkanack was present to answer questions. Mayor Rieder apologized for not getting
this done sooner, but they were not able to get a quorum at the Planning and Zoning meeting. They had met before
the Council meeting today to approve the special permit. Alderman Baker stated we needed more wreckers; there was
enough work to go around for everybody. Mayor Rieder stated the police officers standing on the side of the road
waiting for a tow truck would be glad to have more wreckers in town. Alderman King asked if he would have a fenced
in lot. Hunter Whitkanack stated yes, he would. They were just getting the approval to use the property. They have
the state guidelines that require a six-foot fence all the way around and for it to be lit properly. They plan to meet all
state guidelines. Alderman King asked if he understood since it was in the city, the Chief of Police would be inspecting



Council Meeting
April 15,2024
Page 2 of 3

all of it and the State Police. Hunter Whitkanack stated he did understand. Alderman Bradley made a motion to suspend
the rules and place the ordinance in the second reading which Alderman Baker seconded.

Vote aye: Aldermen Baker, Bradley, Edens, King, Risinger, and Thompson.

The clerk read the ordinance the second time by title. Alderman Risinger made a motion to suspend the rules and place
the ordinance in the third and final reading which Alderman Baker seconded.

Vote aye: Aldermen Baker, Bradley, Edens, King, Risinger, and Thompson.

Alderman Baker made a motion to adopt the ordinance which Alderman Bradley seconded.

Vote aye: Aldermen Baker, Bradley, Edens, King, Risinger, and Thompson.

Ordinance No. 24-943 passed 6-0.

Reports

Clarksville Connected Utility

Bethany Bean reviewed the CCU reports and stated the Commission meeting time for the next meeting was moved to
6:00 p.m. (copy attached).

Economic Development
The monthly report was submitted (copy attached).

Chamber of Commerce

Abby Tucker reviewed the Chamber report of events for the eclipse (copy attached). Hannah Hatchett-Dunson stated
that registration had begun for the Farmers Market, and they would be having a meeting at noon on Thursday and 5:00
p.m. on Friday. It was a beginning of season meeting to answer any questions, and they would have an opening day
festival on April 27" with live music and activities.

Police

Chief Ross stated that comp time was not as bad as they had planned for the 2024 Eclipse. They had to send some
officers home early which made them happy that they did not have to work seven days straight. He submitted the
monthly report (copy attached).

Airport

Airport Chairman Bryan Burnett stated they had not done a lot of pre-planning for the eclipse. They had moved some
airplanes out of the way. They had 18 transients come in for the eclipse. Two from Oregon, one from Arizona and
quite a few from Missouri. There was an airplane accident that afternoon. No serious injuries: a couple of cuts and
broken ribs and a few teeth were lost. The airplane engine quit on take-off, and he put it in the trees. Not a good deal,
but everybody got out. They had 570 skydives over the 3 days. They had tandem skydiving for physically challenged
people. They broke the record in the state for the most women that linked up in the air (6). The U.S. Parachute
Association president came by, and there would be a big write up in the parachute magazine. He would get a copy to
the council when it comes out. They sold 900 gallons of jet fuel. They had 14 jumpers during the eclipse totality. They
took the airplane up full 10 minutes before and circled until total and then jumped out.

The Automated Weather Observation Station (AWOS) should be installed late winter or early spring. Mayor Rieder
stated they were working on the RPZ and would hopefully have that solved this year.

Fire

Fire Chief Jason Weaver submitted the monthly report (copy attached). He gave all the volunteer firemen accolades
for the way they handled the eclipse weekend. Mayor Rieder stated they were not only firefighters but when the
ambulances were not available, they were first responders and life savers. For a volunteer fire department, they were
amazing. It was hard to articulate the many things they did from traffic control to saving the Harps building from fire
and then saving someone’s life because the ambulance could not get to them. It was amazing, and he was very proud
of them. Chief Weaver stated that last year was a record year; call volume wise it had increased by 100 calls. They
were on track to beat last year’s record. They pride themselves on the fact they are a volunteer department and able to
handle it. Mayor Rieder stated he was very proud of them, and they would keep doing everything they could to support
them.



Council Meeting
April 15,2024
Page 3 of 3

City Inspector
No report was submitted.

Street

City Engineer Morgan Barrett stated they were currently working on the west side of Montgomery Street, and they
will be installing the curb and sidewalk before they move to the east side. The asphalt that had been placed was for
leveling to bring the road up in sections for a smoother ride eliminating unevenness. Once the curb is in place they
will come back and put the final surface course of asphalt on. At the end of next week, they will start the curb. The
project is moving rapidly and should be finished before school starts in August.

The new addition to the Marvin Vinson MPB is almost in the dry. Then they will install the HVAC; then the work
will slow down because they have to acclimate the wood flooring before it is installed. If anyone was interested in
looking at the construction let him know, and he would contact the representative and let them look around at the site.
The new entrance is framed up at the front of the building. Alderman Risinger asked if they were on track with the
building. Morgan Barrett stated yes; they should be finished in July.

Parks
No report was submitted.

Aquatic/MPB
Monthly report attached.

Animal Control
Monthly report attached.

Advertising & Promotion Committee
Chair Eddie King reported the A&P Committee would meet in April.

Treasurer

Clerk/Treasurer Barbara Blackard submitted the Treasurer’s Report, Budget Comparison and Disbursements along
with the Bond Statements (copy of reports attached). Jennifer Howard, Deputy City Clerk was recognized for
achieving her Arkansas Certified Municipal Clerk and her Certified Municipal Clerk status through IIMC.

After motion and second the meeting adjourned at 7:32 p.m.

Mayor David Rieder

ATTEST:

City Clerk/Treasurer Barbara Blackard



